JOY K. ADAMS, PH.D. Curriculum Vitae

Last updated: 06/01/2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONTACT INFORMATION	3
EDUCATION	3
ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS	3
ACADEMIC COURSE OFFERINGS	4
TECHNICAL & PEDAGOGICAL TRAINING OFFERINGS	4
FACULTY DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS	5
RECENT PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	6
PUBLICATIONS	7
CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS	8
CAMPUS PRESENTATIONS	12
INVITED PRESENTATIONS	12
RESEARCH EXPERIENCE	13
GRANTS AND FELLOWSHIPS	13
HONORS AND AWARDS	13
LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE	14
SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION	14

CONTACT INFORMATION

Mailing address: 704 Drift Place; Longmont, CO 80504 Email: <u>joy.adams@gmail.com</u> Mobile phone: 303-332-3946

EDUCATION

Certificate, e-Learning Instructional Design	The University of California, Irvine	2015
Ph.D., Geography	The University of Texas at Austin	2006
M.A., Applied Geography	Texas State University-San Marcos	1999
B.A., Geography	The University of Texas at Austin	1994

ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS

Associate Director, Design	Emeritus	2021-present
Teaching & Learning Consultant	University of Colorado Boulder	2018-2021
Adjunct Instructor, Geographical Sciences	The University of Maryland	2014-present
Instructional Designer	American University	2015-2018
Instructional Design Manager	Quad Learning/American Honors	2013-2015
Senior Researcher	Assoc. of American Geographers*	2010-2013
Associate Professor (tenured), Geography	Humboldt State University**	2010
Assistant Professor, Geography	Humboldt State University**	2006-2010
Visiting Lecturer, Geography	Texas State University-San Marcos	2003-2006
Visiting Lecturer, Geography	University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh	2002-2003
Webb Fellow	The University of Texas at Austin	2001-2002
Head Teaching Assistant	The University of Texas at Austin	2000-2001
Laboratory Instructor	The University of Texas at Austin	1999–2000
Graduate Research Assistant	Texas State University-San Marcos	1998-1999

*Following my employment with the AAG, the association changed its name to the American Association of Geographers. **Following my employment with Humboldt State University, the school's name was changed to Cal Poly Humboldt.

ACADEMIC COURSE OFFERINGS

The University of Maryland, College Park

Career Planning for Geographical Sciences, GIS, and ENVS Majors

Geography of the U.S. and Canada (online)

Introduction to Human Geography (online)

**Humboldt State University, Arcata, CA

Community and Place (graduate seminar for MA in Environment & Community)

Directed Study

Geographic Research and Writing

Geography Field Experience

Geography of the U.S. and Canada

Geography of Tourism

Introduction to Cultural Geography

Migrations and Mosaics

Off the Beaten Path: Exploring Humboldt County through Literature & Landscapes (interdisciplinary, team-taught first-year experience)

Senior Field Research

Settlement Geography

Texas State University-San Marcos

Introduction to Cultural Geography

Political Geography

World Regional Geography

University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh

Geography of Tourism

Historical Geography of the U.S. and Canada

Introduction to Cultural Geography

Research Methods

World Regional Geography

TECHNICAL & PEDAGOGICAL TRAINING OFFERINGS

University of Colorado

- Accessibility Basics for Instructors Best Practices for Socially Distanced and Remote Learning Build Your Course in About an Hour with Cidi Labs! Course Design Workshop Flipped Classrooms Introduction to Universal Design for Learning Preparing for Remote Instruction in Eight Simple Steps Rubric Design Workshop Strategic Course Design for Flexible Teaching Modes Summer Book Club
- UDL for Graduate Student Part-Time Instructors

American University

- Introduction to Blackboard
- Advanced Blackboard 1: Tests, Quizzes, Surveys, and the Grade Center
- Advanced Blackboard 2: Rubrics, Adaptive Release, and Alignments
- Promoting Academic Integrity with Blackboard Tools & Features
- Optimizing Your Blackboard Course with Quality Matters
- Blackboard Collaborate
- Beginner Online Teaching Certification Training
- Advanced Online Teaching Training
- Just-in-Time Online Teaching Refresher Training

FACULTY DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS (within larger events)

"UDL for Inclusive Experiences " (with Brad Grabham). CU Spring Diversity & Inclusion Summit, Boulder, CO, February 2020.

"UDL: Strategies for Inclusive Teaching " (with Brad Grabham). Presentation to AMIDEAST visiting scholars from Egypt, Boulder, CO, November 2019.

"UDL: Strategies for Inclusive Teaching" (with Brad Grabham). CU Fall Diversity & Inclusion Summit, Boulder, CO, November 2019.

"UDL: Strategies for Inclusive Teaching" (with Brad Grabham). CU Spring Diversity & Inclusion Summit, Boulder, CO, February 2019.

"Universal Design for Learning: A Paradigm for Inclusive Education." CU Fall Diversity & Inclusion Summit, Boulder, CO, November 2018.

"Faculty Tell All: Teaching Online @ AU" (with David Rose and panelists). 2017 Teaching, Research & Technology Workshops, American University, August 2017.

"The Universal Classroom: Designing Your Course for Diverse Learners" (with Marianne Huger Thomson and Lara Schwartz). 2017 Teaching, Research & Technology Workshops, American University, August 2017.

"Leveraging e-Learning Strategies: Tips & Techniques" (with Jennifer Hoeritz). 28th Annual Ann Ferren Conference, American University, Washington, DC, January 2017.

"Pencils Down: What Student Success Looks Like for Online Learning" (with Terra Gargano and Julia Throop). 28th Annual Ann Ferren Conference, American University, Washington, DC, January 2017.

"Maximize Your Instructional Effectiveness with Universal Design for Learning (UDL)" (with Marianne Huger Thomson and panelists). 28th Annual Ann Ferren Conference, American University, Washington, DC, January 2017.

"Introduction to Recording with Kaltura CaptureSpace (with Katie Kassof). 27th Annual Ann Ferren Conference, American University, Washington, DC, January 2016.

"Enhancing Instruction with Kaltura: Faculty Perspectives on Developing Multimedia Assets (with Katie Kassof and panelists). 27th Annual Ann Ferren Conference, American University, Washington, DC, January 2016.

"A Team-Based Approach to Enhancing Instructional Effectiveness and Student Engagement." Humboldt State University Learning & Teaching Institute, Arcata, CA, May 2009.

"Making Connections: Expanding the Notion of Advising to Improve the Student Educational Experience." Humboldt State University Professional Development Day on Diversity, Arcata, CA, January 2009.

RECENT PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Quality Matters Peer Reviewer Certification Course, K-12 and K-12 Publishing	January 2021
Rocky Mountain Dialogues on Mindfulness in Higher Education	February 2020
Course Design That Welcomes Your Learners Workshop, Quality Matters	January 2020
Universal Design for Learning Implementation Academy, CAST	October 2019
University of Colorado Tech Connect	August 2019
Mindful Teachers Teaching Mindfully, Rocky Mountain Mindfulness Center	Summer 2019
Colorado OER (Open Educational Resources) Conference	May 2019

JOY K. ADAMS, CURRICULUM VITAE, PAGE 6

OLC (Online Learning Consortium) Innovate Conference	April 2019
Re-Thinq 101 Digital Pedagogy Conference, CU Denver	March 2019
UDL 101, CAST	January 2019
Applying the QM Rubric Refresher Training for Peer Reviewers, Quality Matters	January 2019
ProSci ADKAR Change Management Practitioner Certification Training	September 2018
Structure Matters: Teaching Strategies to Promote Student Engagement and Cultivate Classroom Equity and Inclusion	March 2018
Talk Matters: Investigating the Nature of Non-Content Classroom Language	March 2018

PUBLICATIONS [* indicates peer review]

Book Chapters

*Adams, Joy K. "Branching Out: Genealogy as Pedagogy in American Ethnic Geography." *Teaching Ethnic Geography in the 21st Century*, edited by Lawrence E. Estaville, Edris J. Montalvo, and Fenda A. Akiwumi, 16-25. Washington, DC: National Council for Geographic Education, 2014.

*Adams, Joy K. "Ethnicity Carved in Stone: Cemeteries as Learning Environments." *Teaching Ethnic Geography in the 21st Century*, edited by Lawrence E. Estaville, Edris J. Montalvo, and Fenda A. Akiwumi, 130-141. Washington, DC: National Council for Geographic Education, 2014.

*Adams, Joy K. "Switching Sectors: Transitioning into and among Business, Government, and Nonprofit Careers." *Practicing Geography: Careers for Enhancing Society and the Environment*, edited by Michael Solem, Kenneth Foote, and Janice Monk, 27-40. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education, 2013.

*Adams, Joy K., Niem Tu Huynh, Joseph J. Kerski, and G. Brent Hall. "Geography Education and Career Readiness." *Practicing Geography: Careers for Enhancing Society and the Environment*, edited by Michael Solem, Kenneth Foote, and Janice Monk, 15-26. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education, 2013.

Articles

*McKendry, Jean, Joy K. Adams, and Michael Solem. "Employer Perspectives on the Value of Geographic Expertise, Skills, and Technologies." *Research in Geographic Education* 16, no. 1 (2014): 23-40.

*Schlemper, M. Beth, Joy K. Adams, and Michael Solem. "Geographers in Business, Government, and Nonprofit Organizations: Skills, Challenges, and Professional Identities." *The Professional Geographer* 66, no. 3 (2014): 480-492.

*Adams, Joy K., Patricia Solís and Jean McKendry. "The Landscape of Diversity in U.S. Higher Education Geography." *The Professional Geographer* 66, no. 2 (2014): 183-194.

*Solís, Patricia, Joy K. Adams, Leslie Duram, Susan Hume, Al Kuslikis, Victoria Lawson, Inés Miyares, David Padgett, and Alex Ramirez. "Diverse Experiences in Diversity at the Geography Department Scale." *The Professional Geographer* 66, no. 2 (2014): 205-220.

Solem, Michael, Joy K. Adams, and Mark Revell. "Boundless Horizons: Career Opportunities in Geography." *i-LASH 2011: Your Guide to Liberal Arts, Social Sciences and Humanities*, Vol. 7 (2011): 102-104.

*Adams, Joy K. "Conjunto Culture: Celebration and Racialization in the German-Texan 'Borderlands.'" *GeoJournal* 75, no. 3 (2010): 303-314.

Adams, Joy K. "Finding New Educational Opportunities in Budget-tight Times: Service Learning at Humboldt State." *The California State University Institute for Teaching and Learning Connections* 3, no. 1 (Fall 2009).

*Adams, Joy K. "Persistence and Change in the Ethnic Regionalization of Texas." *The Southwestern Geographer* 11 (2007): 321.

*Adams, Joy K. "German for a Day? Festivals and Symbolic Ethnicity in Central Texas." *The Southwestern Geographer* 9 (2005): 5-23.

Research Reports

*Adams, Joy K., and Mary Scoggin. *Tribal Transportation Corridor Management Planning: Model, Case Study, and Guide for Caltrans District 1*. Research Report 10-01. San Jose, CA: Mineta Transportation Institute, 2011.

Book Reviews

"Pittsburgh and the Appalachians: Cultural and Natural Resources in a Post-Industrial Age." *Journal of Regional Science* 48, no. 1 (2008): 279-81.

"A Geography of Heritage: Power, Culture and Economy." *Cultural Geographies* 10, no. 2 (April 2003): 246-247.

"The Promise Fulfilled: A Portrait of Norwegian-Americans." *Social Science Quarterly* 81, no. 4 (Winter 2000): 1113-1114.

CONFERENCE PRESENTATIONS

Papers

"The Information (Literacy) Superhighway: Cultivating Change in Writing Classrooms and Writing Programs" (presented by co-authors Alison Thomas, Alex Hodges, and Jenise Overmeier). Conference on College Composition & Communication, Portland, OR, March 2017.

"Charting a Course into the Workforce: Career Preparation for Geography Majors." National Conference on Geography Education, Memphis, TN, July 2014.

"Geographic Expertise, Skills, and Technologies: What Employers Want" (co-author, presentation by Jean E. McKendry). Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Diversity within Geography: An Exploration of Spatial and Subdisciplinary Patterns." Race, Ethnicity, and Place VI, San Juan, PR, October 2012.

"ALIGNED Toolkit Preview: A Geographic Approach to Enhancing Diversity and Supporting Collaborative Research." American Geophysical Union Unique Experiences for Two-Year College Faculty and Students (AGU-URECAS) Workshop, Washington, DC, July 2012.

"The Landscape of Diversity in U.S. Higher Education Geography" (co-presenter, with Patricia Solís). Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"Workplace Obstacles and Opportunities for Business, Government, and Nonprofit Geographers." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"Where Roads Become Bridges: Developing Interpretive Tribal Corridors in Northwestern California." 4th Biennial Race, Ethnicity, and Place Conference, Miami, FL, November 2008.

"Where Roads Become Bridges: Developing Interpretive Tribal Corridors in Northwestern California." Association of Pacific Coast Geographers, Fairbanks, AK, October 2008.

"'Factoring In' Ethnicity: A New Approach to Identifying American Ethnic Regions." Association of Pacific Coast Geographers, Long Beach, CA, October 2007.

"Conjunto Culture: Celebration and Racialization in the German-Texan 'Borderlands.'" Association of American Geographers, San Francisco, CA, April 2007.

"Authentically' German-Texan: A Case for Symbolic Place Identity." California Geographic Society, Borrego Springs, CA, March 2007.

"German for a Day: Heritage Tourism and Symbolic Ethnicity in Central Texas." Association of American Geographers, Denver, CO, April 2005.

"Mixed Messages? Place Image and Demographic Change in German Texas." Association of American Geographers, Philadelphia, PA, March 2004.

"Ethnic Texas 2000: Using Factor Analysis to Describe Settlement Patterns in the Lone Star State." Association of American Geographers, New Orleans, LA, March 2003.

"The 'Bavarianization' of German Texas: Ethnic Tourism Development in New Braunfels." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, March 2002.

"It's Like a Whole Other Country: Ethnic Tourism Development in Texas, 1954-2000." Southwest Division of the Association of American Geographers, Fort Worth, TX, November 2001.

"It's Like a Whole Other Country: Trends in Ethnic Tourism Development in Texas." American Cultures Graduate Student Conference in American Studies, Austin, TX, September 2001.

"Ethnic Geography Specialty Group Distinguished Scholar 2001: Susan Hardwick." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, March 2001.

"Around the World in Texas: Ethnic Tourism in the Lone Star State." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, March 2001.

"Ethnic Tourism and Place Identity: Case Studies from Central Texas." Association of American Geographers, Pittsburgh, PA, April 2000.

"Quantifying Ethnic Texas: A Factor Analysis of Racial and Ethnic Groups." Southwest Division of the Association of American Geographers, San Marcos, TX, October 1999.

"Ethnic Tourism Development in Clifton, Texas: Selling a Norwegian Heritage." Association of American Geographers, Honolulu, HI, March 1999.

"The Geography of Church League Softball in the United States" (co-author, presentation by Fred Shelley). Southeastern Division of the Association of American Geographers, Memphis, TN, November 1998.

"Cultural Identity among Norwegians in Texas." Southwest Division of the Association of American Geographers, Baton Rouge, LA, October 1998.

Panels and Workshops

"It Takes a Campus: Creating Accessible Learning Experiences in an LMS" (with Brad Grabham and Laura Hamrick). Colorado Learning & Teaching with Technology (COLTT) Conference, Boulder, CO, August 2018.

"Accessibility and Universal Design for Learning: Unifying Efforts in a Resource-Constrained System" (with Brad Grabham, Laura Hamrick, Kate Miller, Anna Reid, and Mike Williamson). Colorado Learning & Teaching with Technology (COLTT) Conference, Boulder, CO, August 2018.

"Preparing Geography Students for the 21st Century Workforce." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"The Academic Job Market for Geographers." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Beyond the Ivory Tower A: Preparing Geographers for Business and Private Sector Careers." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Geoscience and Geography Terminal Master's Programs: Aligning Learning Outcomes to Workforce Competencies." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Integrating Careers Awareness and Preparedness into the Geography Curriculum." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Internships and Work-Based Learning as Career Preparation." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Navigating an Academic Career: Opportunities and Challenges for Geographers." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Welcome to the AAG Annual Meeting! A Discussion on Navigating and Making the Most of the Conference." Association of American Geographers, Los Angeles, CA, April 2013.

"Even Grounds: Career Preparation for Students through Internship Experiences." Joint Annual Meeting of the Middle Atlantic Division of the AAG and the Pennsylvania Geographical Society, Salisbury, MD, October 2012.

"Preparing Geography Students for the 21st Century Workforce." National Conference on Geographic Education, San Marcos, TX, October 2012.

"Resume Roundtable." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"The Academic Job Market for Geographers." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"Internships and Work-Based Learning as Career Preparation." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"Welcome to the AAG Annual Meeting! Navigating and Making the Most of the Conference." Association of American Geographers, New York, NY, February 2012.

"Beyond the Ivory Tower: Geography Careers in the Business, Government, and Nonprofit Sectors." Annual Meeting of the Southwest Division of the AAG, Austin, TX, November 2011.

"Beyond the Ivory Tower: Geography Careers in the Business, Government, and Nonprofit Sectors." Annual Meeting of the Middle Atlantic Division of the AAG, College Park, MD, October 2011.

"Beyond the Ivory Tower: Applied Careers for Geographers." Applied Geography Conference, Redlands, CA, October 2011.

"Value Proposition to Geography Departments of the Private/Public Affinity Group." Association of American Geographers, Seattle, WA, April 2011.

"Teaching Outside the Box: Pedagogical Innovations by and for New Faculty." Association of American Geographers, Las Vegas, NV, March 2009.

"Strategies for Supporting Female Students and Faculty. "California Geographic Society, Chico, CA, May 2008.

"Ethnic Geographers 'Giving Back." Association of American Geographers, San Francisco, CA, April 2007.

"Terry Jordan's Legacy: Continuing a Geographic Lineage." Association of American Geographers, Philadelphia, PA, March 2004.

"New Directions in Ethnic Geography. "Association of American Geographers, New Orleans, LA, March 2003.

"Toward an Applied Ethnic Geography." Association of American Geographers, Honolulu, HI, March 1999.

CAMPUS PRESENTATIONS

"ASSETT Innovation Incubator: Metacognition and Well-Being." University of Colorado Discipline-Based Education Research (DBER) community, Boulder, CO, April 2020.

"Universal Design for Learning: Strategies for Inclusive Teaching." College of Media, Communication & Information Inclusive Pedagogy Workshop series, Boulder, CO, November 2019.

"The American University Experience: E-Learning Support Services." University Library Board of Directors meeting, American University, Washington, DC, March 2017.

"Leverage Learning and Demonstrate Professional Skills." School of Professional & Extended Studies, American University, Washington, DC, September 2015.

"How to Get a Job Like Mine: Strategies for Starting Your Career in Geography." University of Maryland Department of Geographical Sciences, College Park, MD, April 2013.

"Local Perspectives/Global Heritage: Tribal Tourism and Representation." Humboldt State University Anthropology Club, Arcata, CA, May 2009.

"Celebrating Service Learning Successes." Humboldt State University, Arcata, CA, April 2008.

"Strategies for Female Instructors." Texas State University Geography Graduate Assistant Orientation, San Marcos, TX, August 2005.

"Resources and Teaching Strategies from the Geography Faculty Development Alliance." Texas State University Geography Graduate Assistant Orientation, San Marcos, TX, August 2005.

"Thesis Therapy." Texas State University Geography Graduate Assistant Orientation, San Marcos, TX, August 2005.

"Time Management: Hints from the Trenches." Tools for Teaching: A Conference for Experienced TAs and AIs, UT-Austin Center for Teaching Effectiveness, Austin, TX, January 2002.

"Making UT Smaller: Building Learning Communities." Great Beginnings: A Conference for New TAs (with Marian Barber), UT-Austin Center for Teaching Effectiveness, Austin, TX, September 2001.

"Creating a Warmer Climate for Female Graduate Students." Southwest Texas State Geography Alumni Reunion, San Marcos, TX, April 1999.

INVITED PRESENTATIONS

"Tips and Tricks for Developing Strong Interviewing Skills" (with Niem Huynh). American Association of Geographers Professional Development Webinar Series, online, May 2022.

"Tribal Corridor Pilot Project: State Highway 96" (with Mary Scoggin). Humboldt County Tribal Transportation Commission, Table Bluff Reservation, CA, October 2007.

"Norwegian Immigration to Texas: Its History and Geography." Norwegian Heritage Club, San Antonio, TX, January 1999.

"Norwegian Settlement and Cultural Identity in Texas." Sons of Norway, Austin, TX, June 1998.

RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Aligning Learning Outcomes and Workforce Competencies for Terminal Geography and Geology Master's Degree Programs, Association of American Geographers and the American Geosciences Institute, 2012–2013.

My Community, Our Earth-NASA SERVIR Partnership, Association of American Geographers, 2012–2013.

Why Geography Is Important, Grosvenor Center for Geographic Education, 2012.

Teaching with Data, Pathway to Quantitative Literacy in the Social Sciences, Association of American Geographers, 2011.

Infusing Green/Sustainability Standards into Career Clusters, National Career Clusters Framework, 2011.

Enhancing Departments and Graduate Education in Geography (EDGE), Association of American Geographers, 2010–2013.

Addressing Locally-tailored Information Infrastructure & Geoscience Needs for Enhancing Diversity (ALIGNED), Association of American Geographers, 2010–2012.

GRANTS AND FELLOWSHIPS

ASSETT Innovation Incubator: Metacognition and Well-Being	2019
Faculty Development Grant, HSU Emeritus and Retired Faculty Association	2009
Research Grant, SR 96 Tribal Corridor Management Plan, Mineta Transportation Inst.	2006
Faculty Development Grant, Humboldt State University	2006
Faculty Development Grant, Texas State University	2005
Continuing Tuition Fellowship, The University of Texas	2003
David Bruton, Jr. Graduate Fellowship, The University of Texas	2002
Robert E. Veselka Endowed Fellowship for Graduate Research Travel, UT Geography	2002
Walter Prescott Webb Graduate Research Fellowship, The University of Texas	2001
Research Grant, Emigration Fund of 1973, Norsemen's Federation (Oslo, Norway)	1999

HONORS AND AWARDS

Fellow, Gilbert M. Grosvenor Center for Geographic Education	2012
McCrone Promising Faculty Scholar, HSU College of Arts, Humanities & Social Sciences	2009
Third Place, Student Paper Competition, AAG Ethnic Geography Specialty Group	2005
Graduate Leadership Award, UT Geography	2002
Second Place, Graduate Student Paper Competition, Southwest Division of the AAG	2001
First Place, Graduate Student Paper Competition, Southwest Division of the AAG	1999
Rand McNally Graduate Achievement Award, Southwest Texas State Geography	1999
Outstanding Graduate Service to the Department, Southwest Texas State Geography	1999

LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE

Accessibility Compliance Committee, Emeritus	2022
Accessibility Working Group, CU Boulder	2018-2019
American University Experience Leadership Team	2016-2017
Barns Again! Humboldt Advisory Committee (Arcata, CA)	2008-2010
Best Practices for Remote and Online Teaching Committee, CU Boulder	2020
California Geographical Society	
Board Member	2008-2010
Chair, Student Awards	2008-2010
Companion Animal Foundation Board of Directors (Arcata, CA)	2007-2010
Diversity Grant Selection Committee, Humboldt State University	2008-2010
Ethnic Geography Specialty Group, Association of American Geographers	
Board Member	2007-2012
Chair, Student Paper Competition	2008-2010
Student Board Member	2000-2002
HSU Environment & Community MA Program, Admissions Committee	2008-2010
National Council for Geographic Education Research Committee	2014-2015
North Coast Geotourism Commission Advisory Board (Eureka, CA)	2009-2010
Race, Ethnicity, and Place VI Conference, Board of Directors	2011-2013
Strengths Advisory Committee, CU Boulder	2019

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE

Reviewer, Visualizing Human Geography	2019
Quality Matters Certified Peer Reviewer	2017–present
Manuscript Reviewer, Journal of Historical Geography	2014
Course Reviewer, GeoTech Center	2014
Manuscript Reviewer, Journal of Cultural Geography	2009
Reviewer, Aspiring Academics (Pearson)	2009
Reviewer, Routledge Publishing	2009
Reviewer, National Geographic Atlas of the World	2005
Reviewer, Essentials of World Regional Geography	2004